
AGENDA

Committee - GREATER THETFORD 
DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP 
COMMUNITY SUB-GROUP

Date & Time - WEDNESDAY, 15TH NOVEMBER, 
2017 AT 7.00 PM

Venue - KING'S HOUSE, KING STREET, 
THETFORD, IP24 2AT

Public Document Pack



Greater Thetford Development Partnership Community Sub-Group
Wednesday, 15th November, 2017

Page(s)
herewith

1. AGENDA 3 - 10



GTDP Community Sub-Group Meeting
Wednesday 15th November 2017, 7–9pm,

King’s House, King Street, Thetford

Agenda
1. Introductions

2. Approval of Minutes
Approval of the minutes from the previous Sub-Group meeting of 20th September.

3. Announcements & Matters Arising
Announcements from the Chair; Matters arising from the minutes not covered in another item.

4. Sustainable Urban Expansion and Thetford Enterprise Park Updates

5. Public Questions
Up to 15 minutes for questions and comments from members of the public.

6. Items for Discussion
Main items for public discussion and input. See separate paper for further details.

(a) Sub-Group Membership — including procedures for election / re-election of community
members, Business Forum representation, and youth representation.

7. Items to Note
Other items of public interest, which there will not necessarily be time to discuss at this meeting.

(a) Breckland District Council have launched a new website feature called My Breckland
(https://www.breckland.gov.uk/mybreckland). People can enter their postcode to re-
ceive tailored information on things like bin collections, heath services, and their councillors.

(b) Three local projects are competing for funding in the Aviva Community Fund, and need
your votes: Project Saxons from Thetford Netball Club, St. Peter’s Cultural Arts Centre
from SIMPLE Norfok & Inspire Focus, and Trip to the Pantomime from 1st Thetford Rain-
bows. Vote at https://community-fund.aviva.co.uk/ before Tuesday 21st November.

(c) Thetford Town Council is seeking volunteer Tree Wardens. See https://goo.gl/QUHrYk.

8. Any Other Business

9. Meeting Summary

Members of the public are encouraged to attend and participate at the meeting. In addition to the time
for public questions, members of the public have the opportunity to contribute during the remainder of
the meeting at the invitation of the Chair. Further details and meeting papers are available online at
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/community-subgroup. Minutes and papers are also available at the Town
Council Offices in King’s House and at Leaping Hare on King Street.

3

Agenda Item 1

https://www.breckland.gov.uk/mybreckland
https://community-fund.aviva.co.uk/
https://goo.gl/QUHrYk
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/community-subgroup


Page 1 of 4

MINUTES
Greater Thetford Development Partnership 

Communities Sub-Group
20 September 2017 

19:00hrs

Chair: Mr Robert Whittaker (RW) Note / Minute 
Taker:

Doug Stephen

Attendees: Corinne Fulford (CF), Doug Stephen (DS), Andy Cruse(AC), Brenda Canham 
(BC), Martin Engwell (ME) (Substitute for Rae Herries)

In 
Attendance

Kate Murrell (KM) (County Council’s Waste Reduction and Recycling Manager).
Ten members of the public (MOP)

Apologies Rae Herries, Diana Goucher

1. Introductions
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting and explained the purpose of 
the Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board and its three sub-groups.  
Members introduced themselves.

The Chairman also introduced Kate Murrell (Norfolk County Council’s Waste 
Reduction and Recycling Manager).

2. Approval of Minutes
CF asked that in Section 6, more detail on the bridges mentioned in the 
Waterspace Study be included. It was agreed the following should be added 
after the paragraph ending “… which was not yet available”:

“There was some discussion about possible improvements to the Town 
Bridge and the 3-way bridge to allow for better navigation on the river.”

The minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2017 were then approved 

3. Announcements & matters arising
The Chairman discussed his update and highlighted: 

GTDP Board meeting 
The Board met on the 17 September 2017 and the Board Chairman announced 
that his initial contract had expired and he was not seeking its renewal.

Railway Station Issues – The Chair was still following up the issue of who is 
responsible for Station Lane (the track running north from the station footbridge 
to Mundford Road). Norfolk County Council say it is not a Public Highway, so 
they are not responsible for maintaining it. However no evidence has been found 
yet to show that it was stopped up, so this may not be correct. The Chair will 
continue to investigate.

Board Transparency –  A member of the Breckland Communications Team had 
been at the recent Board meeting, and there had been a discussion about 
improvements. RW said he thought that the Board had agreed to publishing a 
summary/highlights after each of their meetings, and would give some publicity 
to the new vision and objectives. CF reported that final versions of minutes were 
missing from some of the Board meeting pages. RW will follow this up.

Action
RW

Action
RW

4



Page 2 of 4

4. Sustainable Urban Expansion (SUE) and Thetford Enterprise Park (TEP) 
Updates

SUE
Detailed planning application for the first phase is expected to be submitted 
shortly including 343 dwellings with a start anticipated in 2018.

Breckland District Council intend to submit a grant application to the Homes and 
Communities Agency for around £6.5M, to fund an electricity upgrade that is 
needed for the remainder of the SUE and TEP. (There is already sufficient 
electrical capacity for the initial 343 dwellings.)

There is concern over the provision of healthcare facilities for new residents. 
Some plans are in place for expanding existing GP practices, but there seem to 
be no plans for additional dentistry provision. This was raised at the last Board 
meeting, and investigation by the Health representative is ongoing.

TEP
No update had been provided.

5. Public Questions

MOP stated that the steps leading to the ticket office at the railway station do not 
comply with H&S requirements due to lack of a hand rail. To be raised with 
operator.

MOP expressed concern that GTDP was not involved with planning and current 
developments going ahead in Thetford. Clarification given to MOP about GTDP 
remit and its status with regard to planning matters. Although the GTDP are not 
involved in planning matters for individual developments, it was thought that the 
Community Sub-Group could help raise awareness of significant proposals.

MOP raised several items about lack of bus services in/from Thetford;
1. No local bus service at Nunnery Drive.
2. Lack of bus service to Norwich (no use of bus pass on National Express)
3. Revisions to other local services are causing problems for the elderly and 

to those travelling to West Suffolk Hospital, Bury St Edmunds.

MOP expressed frustration about Breckland District Council’s (BDC) failure to 
prosecute fly-tippers on several occasions despite being provided with evidence 
including witness statements and video evidence. There appears to be a lack of 
co-operation between BDC and Flagship. RW agreed to raise these matters with 
BDC.

Several MOP’s raised questions about waste management, procedures and 
regulations. (see Waste Management below)

Action
RW

Action
RW

5



Page 3 of 4

6a. Waste Management 

KM gave a comprehensive brief on the county’s waste management procedures, 
policies and the legislation affecting them. She also explained why some items 
were subject to charging at the Recycling Centres and others were not.

MOP asked about the apparent inconsistent charging at the Thetford Recycling 
Centre for similar loads. KM acknowledged that it was a difficult problem as 
operatives had at times to use interpretation/discretion and that the policy was 
under constant review.

MOP who works in the voluntary sector asked for and was given advice on 
disposal of hazardous waste (sharps/needles) as the volume appearing in the 
town is increasing.

BC noted that some residents who have no transport rely on “a man with a van” 
to dispose of items which cannot go in the household rubbish bins. KM noted that 
number plate recognition equipment installed at sites enables staff to identify 
individuals who are carrying out this work however, charging them for disposal 
carries the risk that they will fly tip instead of recycling.

KM said that education of the public on waste disposal was an important factor 
and asked for suggestions as to how this could be better achieved. Several were 
offered by MOP.

ME noted that having used several recycling centres throughout the country, he 
considered the Thetford one to be the best by far; a view endorsed by others.

NOTE; Although minuted in agenda order, this item was in fact dealt with early to 
facilitate an early departure for KM.

6b. Youth Engagement

Thetford Town Council have started work on establishing a Youth Council and 
are awaiting feedback.

RW suggested that when the Youth Council was in being, a representative could 
be invited to attend this Sub-Group’s meetings.

6c Cycling and Walking Routes Investigation

The call for responses resulted in 32 submissions with several items appearing 
frequently. RW is to collate the information and prepare a report for the Board for 
their consideration and action.

Action
RW

7. Any Other Business 

AC noted that the Sub-Group’s terms of reference require that the membership of 
the Sub-Group is reviewed annually. RW will raise this with the Board.

Action
RW

6



Page 4 of 4

8. Next Meeting of Community Sub-Group

15th November 2017

Meeting Closed: 9.00pm.

7



Item 3: Chairman’s Notes
Robert Whittaker

GTDP Community Sub-Group Meeting, 15th November 2017

1 GTDP Board Meetings

I attended the GTDP Board met on 13th October as the Sub-Group’s representative. The
agenda, papers and draft minutes can be found online at http://www.gtdp.org.uk/board.
Some highlights from the Board meeting are as follows:

• The Board voted to reduce its size significantly, and will now comprise only the elected
councillors and the chairs of the Sub-Groups. A separate ‘Officer Group’ will also be
formed, though it is unclear exactly how this will interact with the main Board.

• Rather than funding an independent chair, the Board will elect one of its own number to
chair the meetings. Resources will instead be put into a project-management position to
help with the administration of the Board.

• Rather than being represented directly on the Board, the Business Forum will instead have
a representative on the Community Sub-Group and on the Inward Investment Sub-Group.

• At the Board meeting, written updates were provided on the TEP and on Objective 1
(Strategic Infrastructure), and there was discussion about the other Objectives.

• A report on Communications will be brought to the next Board meeting.

2 Board Transparency

It is pleasing to see that the Board appears to be taking transparency and publicity more
seriously now. A further report from the Breckland Communications Team is expected at the
next meeting. Some steps I would be keen to promote on behalf of the community would be:

• The continuing production of a meeting highlights summary, to be published rapidly after
each Board meeting.

• Except for emergencies, all reports, papers and proposals should be published with the
Agenda in advance of each Board meeting.

• Papers and minutes and should be published in accordance with the agreed timescales.

• At each Board meeting, written reports should be provided (a) by each Sub-Group, (b)
on TEP and SUE progress, and (c) on activity around each of the Strategic Objectives.

• Some form of minutes, meeting notes or summary should be published for every GTDP
Board, Sub-Group and Officer Group meeting.

• The GTDP website needs to be updated to include current information on the Strategic
Objectives, TEP and SUE.

3 Community Sub-Group Cycling and Walking Project

I have to apologise that there is little to report here at this meeting. I have been busy with
other things so have not yet had time to start writing up the final report. I have however, been
collecting some more background information on existing routes, and I am grateful for the help
provided from the three Councils here. The Little Ouse Waterspace study is due to be published

1

8

http://www.gtdp.org.uk/board


at the beginning of December, and it will be useful to be able to reference its suggestions in our
report.

4 Answers to Public Questions and Concerns

Various issues have been raised by the public at previous Sub-Group meetings, and we have
attempted to investigate and provide answers.

Station Lane. I have made a little more progress on the question of who is responsible for
maintaining Station Lane — the track running north from the footbridge to Mundford
Road. This was a particular cause for concern at previous meetings, as it provides the
only vehicle access to the Norwich-bound platform.

The road certainly used to be a Public Highway, as it was the main road from Thetford
to Mundford before the Railway arrived. Most of the land within the boundaries has
no registered owner at present, although the owner of the Builders Yard also owns the
adjacent land up to the centreline of the road. (The latter is a common situation with
Public Highways.)

I have corresponded with various people at Norfolk County Council. The Council’s position
is that the route used to be a Public Highway, but that rights over it were stopped up by
the Great Eastern Railway (General Powers) Act 1885 (https://goo.gl/5sRYWr). The
Act does not explicitly say this, but the Council are relying on an attached plan on which
Station Lane is labelled as “Road to be Diverted”.

I disagree with their interpretation, and believe that the Act only stopped up the road at
the level crossing, leaving the rest of the route to the Mundford Road as a dead-end Public
Highway. i.e. the main road was diverted, but only the level crossing was stopped up. The
text of the act in Section 7 states explicitly that rights of way over the level crossing are
to be stopped up, but does not mention the extinguishing any other rights. The Railway
Cottages existed at the time, and if rights on the road were to be stopped up, some
provision would have had to have been made for them. There is no such provision in the
Act. Furthermore, the Act explicitly states that the Railway company needs to maintain a
footbridge to “allow persons on foot at all times to cross and re-cross pedestrians to cross
the railway”. There would be little point in requiring this if the road on the other side
was no longer to be a Public Highway.

Given Norfolk County Council’s position, it is not clear where we could go from here.
There is a legal avenue available (a notice under Section 56 of the Highway Act) but
that could lead to a potentially expensive court case if the Council still refused to accept
liability. We could ask the GTDP Board to recommend that Norfolk County Council look
again at the road’s status, and consider re-adopting it if it is not still a Public Highway. A
petition and getting support from the Councillors might also help. Another option would
be to claim the route as a Public Byway based on 20 years of uncontested use — but this
wouldn’t necessarily require the road to be repaired.

Bus Services. Various issues were raised about bus services in the town at September 2017
Sub-Group meeting. These were raised with the lead for Objective 4 (Town Centre and
Transport Links) at the October Board meeting.

Transport Issues. It seems that the Sub-Group’s request for an integrated transport study
will be met (perhaps coincidentally), as Norfolk County Council are to conduct a number
of traffic studies in Market Towns across the County. Thetford will be one of the first. If
the Sub-Group would like to make any particular requests for issues to be examined, we
should be able to pass these on through the Board.

2

9

https://goo.gl/5sRYWr


Item 6: Items for Discussion
GTDP Community Sub-Group Meeting, 15th November 2017

(a) Sub-Group Membership

The Sub-Group currently comprises three council representatives (one each from Thetford
Town, Croxton Parish and Brettenham & Kilverstone Parish Councils) and four independent
community members (who were recruited via an open application process in 2015). A number
of issues have arisen recently in connection with the membership of the Sub-Group, which
it would be useful to discuss.

Business Forum Representative

Following the recent changes to the membership of the GTDP Board (with the Business
Forum one of those organisations to lose their seat), the Board agreed that the Business
Forum should have a Representative on the Community Sub-Group.

It is expected that the Sub-Group’s Terms of Reference will be updated to reflect this in due
course. But in the mean time, in order to ensure continued representation for the Business
Forum, the Sub-Group might like to consider co-opting a Business Forum representative on
a temporary basis.

Young People’s Representative

It has previously been suggested that the Community Sub-Group would benefit from having
more input from younger people, and a specific Young Person’s representative was suggested.
The newly established Thetford Youth Council would have seemed an ideal body to ask to
nominate a representative. (Doing so would have avoided duplication of effort with recruit-
ment and selection.) But apparently the Town Council will not allow this. The Sub-Group
is therefore invited to consider alternatives for obtaining youth input, either via a specific
Youth Representative or otherwise.

Election / Re-Election of Community Members

The Sub-Group’s terms of reference state that membership should be reviewed annually, but
no provision is made for how to refresh or re-appoint the independent community members.
Ideas are sought for what would be best to propose here. Should nominations be sought and
an election be run? If so, how? Should councillors and members of other groups already
represented on the Sub-Group Board be ineligible to stand and/or vote in any such election,
in order to ensure greater diversity on the Sub-Group?

1

10


	Agenda
	1 Agenda
	Community Sub-Gp Draft minutes 20 sept 2017
	3-chairmans-notes
	GTDP Board Meetings
	Board Transparency
	Community Sub-Group Cycling and Walking Project
	Answers to Public Questions and Concerns

	6-items-for-discussion


